
 
 

 
 
Committee: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

THURSDAY, 13 JANUARY 2022 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL 

Time: 5.00 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for absence  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 To receive as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2021 

(previously circulated).   
  
3. Declarations of Interest  
 
 To receive declarations by Councillors of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Councillors are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are 
required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Councillors should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Councillors are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.   

  
4. Items of Urgent Business authorised by the Chair  
 
5. Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
 The Committee is recommended to pass the following recommendation in relation to the 

following item:- 
 
“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the 
grounds that it could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1,2 and 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.”   
 
Members are reminded that, whilst the following item has been marked as exempt, it is for 
the Committee itself to decide whether or not to consider each of them in private or in 
public.  In making the decision, Members should consider the relevant paragraph(s) of 



 

Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and also whether the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.  In 
considering their discretion Members should also be mindful of the advice of Council 
Officers.   

  
6. Recruitment Process  
 
7. Contingency Arrangements (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
 Report of the Head of HR.   

 
Note:  Attached report deferred at the last meeting.   

  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Tim Hamilton-Cox (Chair), Erica Lewis (Vice-Chair), Richard Austen-Baker, 

Adrian De La Mare, Merv Evans, Kevin Frea, Ross Hunter, Cary Matthews and 
Oliver Robinson 
 

 
(ii) Substitute Membership 

 
 Councillors Roger Cleet, Janice Hanson, Tricia Heath, Caroline Jackson, Stuart Morris, 

Paul Stubbins and Jason Wood 
 

 
(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Stephen Metcalfe, Democratic Services - 01524 582073, or email 

smetcalfe@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Democratic Support email democracy@lancaster.gov.uk.  
 
 
 

KIERAN KEANE, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Wednesday, 5 January 2022.   

 

mailto:democracy@lancaster.gov.uk


 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT COMMITTEE  

 
Contingency Arrangements  

 

02 December 2021 
 

Report of the Head of HR 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To propose and agree the contingency arrangements for the transitional period between 
Chief Executives 

  

 

This report to be considered in public.   

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1)  That the Chief Executive Recruitment Committee: 
 

 Consider the options presented; 

 Consider whether any other options may be viable and remove any 
options considered to be unacceptable; 

 Rank the identified options in preference order; 

 Delegate their implementation to the Chair of the CERC in conjunction 
with the Head of HR 

 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The selection of a Chief Executive is an important strategic undertaking. The Chief 

Executive performs the role of Head of Paid Service for the Authority and we are 
legally and Constitutionally required to have a Head of Paid Service identified at all 
times. (This includes any absence, not just when there is a vacancy). 

 
1.2 The current situation is that our Head Of Paid Service will leave the Authority on 31st 

March and will have leave to take in advance of that date.  
 
1.3 The recruitment approach discussed in Agenda Item 7 and the notice periods of likely 

candidates mean that there is the potential for the successfully appointed candidate 
to not be available by 1st April, leaving a gap.  

 
1.4 It is prudent to put in place Contingency arrangements for this, so they can be 

enacted should a gap be likely.  
 
1.5 A range of Contingencies are proposed below in no particular order. Members are 

requested to consider these, suggest any further ones that the Committee can agree 
on, remove any unacceptable ones, and place them in rank order. The Chair of the 
Committee and Head of HR will then implement the best available contingency.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 7



 
 
 
 

Rank 
Order 

Contingency Advantages Disadvantages 

 Appoint an 
external 
Interim 

Provides additional capacity. 
Introduces new perspectives. 
Clear distinction between Head of 
Paid Service 
There is a known pool of Interim 
Chief Execs so likely to be 
straightforward to identify an 
available candidate (with sufficient 
notice).  
 

This process would 
need to start in 
parallel with 
recruitment. 
 
 A further set of 
selection processes 
will be required. 
Costs of interims 
tend to be 
considerably higher 
than permanent 
employees and are 
paid on a day rate 
likely to be around 
double the salary.  
 

 Invite 
expressions of 
interest from 
Directors 

Familiarity with Authority and 
context.  
Least cost option 
Would provide development 
opportunities for Director and for 
Heads of Service to backfill 
director. 
Could be net cheaper than the 
Chief Executive salary, due to 
backfill cascade of existing 
employees so could mitigate the 
cost impact of the recruitment 
process.  

Would be some 
costs associated 
with bridging the 
gap. Would not 
increase the 
capacity available to 
run the authority. 
We would need to 
run a transparent 
selection process. 
Would not bring a 
new or different 
strategic 
perspective.  

 Approach 
neighbouring 
authorities to 
find out if they 
would be 
willing to take 
on interim 
shared 
leadership 

Experienced person familiar with 
context. Relatively cheaper than an 
external interim 

There are potential 
constitutional issues 
to be navigated for 
potential conflicts of 
interest.  
Costs would be 
incurred in terms of 
share of salary.  
Would only get a 
part time resource.  

 Other Option 1  
 
 
 

 

 Other Option 2  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing)  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
HR and legal advice will be available throughout the recruitment process to ensure that legal 
requirements relating to employment are complied with. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
The revenue budget includes £30,000 in the current financial year for the recruitment of a 
new Chief Executive.  This amount is funded from the Corporate Priorities Reserve slipped 
from 2020/21 as the current arrangements were extended. 
 
Whilst the final costs will depend on choices made by the Committee in consideration of Item 
7 of this Agenda, it is expected that this amount is sufficient to cover the direct recruitment 
costs.  
 
With regard to contingency arrangements, these costs will vary depending on which are 
deployed. For example, an acting up arrangement will result in a net saving as the existing 
salary would likely displace the cost. An interim is likely to have a higher day rate than our 
existing salary provision, which could potentially lead to an overspend.  
 
  

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Human Resources: 
The recruitment process will be handled in line with Council Policy and Procedures, and all 
legislative requirements. The HR Matters are also set out in the body of the report.  
   
Information Services; Property; Open Spaces: None. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
As this is a Statutory Officer post it is essential that provision is made to ensure continuation 
of those duties. Members will need to ensure that the interim arrangements being proposed 
will ensure CEO responsibilities continue to be undertaken in accordance with statutory 
requirements. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
Section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 places a duty on each Council to 
designate one of their officers as the Head of Paid Service and to provide that officer with 
such staff, accommodation and other resources as are, in his/her opinion, sufficient to allow 
his/her duties under this section to be performed. Section 7(2) of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 requires that the council ensure that the appointment of the Chief 
Executive/Head of Paid Service is made on merit. 
 
One of the options is to share a Chief Executive with another authority on an interim basis. In 
accordance with Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 a local authority can enter 

Page 5



into an agreement with another local authority to place its officers at the disposal of the other 
authority. Officers subject to sharing arrangements are able to take binding decisions on 
behalf of the body at whose disposal they are placed, although they remain an employee of 
their original authority for employment and superannuation purposes.  
 
Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 require that 
the appointment of the Head of Paid Service shall not be a function of the Executive and 
therefore this is a Full Council function. 
 
Full Council has delegated any interim arrangements for the Chief Executive that may be 
necessary to the Chief Executive Recruitment Committee.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Chief Executive sample job descriptions 
pack 
Briefing note on Chief Executive 
Remuneration.   

Contact Officer:   

Telephone:  +44 7557 892233 (Sarah 

Davies) 

E-mail: agougazian@lancaster.gov.uk 
  

 
 

Page 6


	Agenda
	7 Contingency Arrangements

